
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HUNTSVILLE, ALABAMA,

HELD THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2014

The Honorable Council of the City of Huntsville, Alabama,

met in regular session on Thursday, March 27, 2014, at 6 p.m.,

in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building, there being

present: 

President:  Russell

Councilpersons: Culver, Olshefski, Showers, Kling

Mayor: Battle

City Administrator: Hamilton

Deputy City Attorney: Cates

City Clerk-Treasurer: Hagood

President Russell called the meeting to order.

Pastor Robert Somerville, Community Pastor and Director of

Awareness Ministries, led the invocation; President Russell led

the pledge of allegiance.

The minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council on

March 13, 2014, were approved as submitted.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Resolutions and Special Recognitions.

President Russell recognized Mayor Battle.

Mayor Battle recognized Mr. Greg Patterson, Director of

Parks and Recreation, stating that there were some athletes to

be honored.

Mr. Patterson stated that they were in the middle of



-2-

March Madness and were going to be recognizing some of the

high school and youth league players who had been very

successful in basketball.

Mr. Patterson asked Sierra Jones of Madison Academy to

come forward, noting that she was a senior and had made

First Team All State, selected by the Alabama Sports Writers. 

He continued that she had signed a scholarship with Belmont

University. 

Mr. Patterson congratulated Sierra for her outstanding

achievement.

Mr. Patterson asked Josh Langford to come forward, noting

that he was a sophomore at Madison Academy and had been

selected First Team All State by the Alabama Sports Writers. 

He continued that he was considered by many as the top

sophomore in the state of Alabama, that he had been selected

for All State three times.  He stated that Josh had been

injured late in the year and that he, along with one of his

teammates, had had to go out right before the tournament.  He

stated that the team most likely would have won the AAA State

Championship, noting that they had gotten all the way to the

Final Four without two outstanding players.

Mr. Patterson congratulated Josh for his outstanding

record.

Mr. Patterson asked Coach Andy Blackston of Madison

Academy to come forward.  He stated that Mr. Blackston's teams

had won three state championships.  He stated that Coach



-3-

Blackston had a great program going there and that he had

several players that would be coming back the following year

and he felt they would have a great team the following year

also.  He congratulated him for his outstanding work.

Mr. Patterson asked Brandon Jones and Ronnie Elliott,

coaches of the 8 and Under Metro League basketball team to come

forward.  He stated that their team had won the 8 and Under

State Championship.  He asked Coach Elliott to introduce the

team members.

Coach Elliott thanked everyone for the support they had

received and also thanked the Metro League for giving the

children the opportunity to showcase their talents.  He stated

that each year at the end of the season, the teams that had the

best records got to choose which players they wanted to go to

state.  He stated that Coach Jones’ team had been the No. 1

team in the 8 and Under Division and his team had been second,

so that they had come together to make sure the players had

everything they needed to give them the experience to move

forward.  He stated that it had been a great season. 

Coach Elliott introduced the team members, who came

forward and were congratulated by Mayor Battle and the Council

members.

Coach Elliott stated to the Council that if they continued

to do the great job they did with the City, providing great

parks to facilitate these programs, they would continue to do

everything they could to provide positive role models for their



-4-

community.  He expressed appreciation for this recognition.

Councilman Showers stated that President Russell had

provided the books that he was handing out to the team members.

President Russell stated that this was a book that

Tony McGinnis, a great basketball player who had grown up in

Huntsville, had written.  He stated that Mr. McGinnis had

attended Texas A&M and had done great in school and had given

back to the community.  He stated that he felt the players

would learn something from reading this book, that it was a

great book about basketball and life.

Mayor Battle stated that he had a proclamation recognizing

the Retired Senior Voluntary Program National Day of Service. 

He asked Ms. Laura Carroll and Ms. Kay Vest to come forward. 

He continued that this was a national program that encouraged

the Senior Community to stay active and volunteer their

valuable services to the community.  He stated that this was

the second observance of the Day of Service.

Mayor Battle stated that the proclamation set out the

power of the citizens through AmeriCorps and Senior Corps.  He

continued that a majority of the members made a year-long,

full-time commitment, while living at the economic poverty

level, to serve on specific projects for nonprofit agencies and

to assist in providing health education, promoting emergency

preparedness, and tutoring and mentoring students.  He stated

that this was the Mayor's Day of Recognition for National

Service in the city, honoring AmeriCorps members and



-5-

Senior Corps members who had been serving effectively for

25 years.

Mayor Battle stated that one of the things they constantly

talked about in the City was persons who gave back and who gave

back on a regular basis.  He thanked the representatives for

all they and their group gave back to the community, noting

that without volunteers the community would never be where it

was at this time.  He stated that it was the volunteerism, day

in and day out, that made Huntsville a great city.  He thanked

them for their service.

Mayor Battle asked Mr. Bryon Thomas, Director of Human

Resources, to come forward, noting that they had some employee

incentive awards to present.  He also asked Ms. Gina Smith of

the IT Department to come forward.  He stated that these awards

were to be presented to some employees of the IT Department,

noting that these were efficiency awards and also awards for

doing great jobs and making the City better.

Mr. Thomas stated that it was always a privilege to honor 

employees who were doing a great job throughout the City.  He

continued that they had a special program where they recognized

employees who added value to the services and operations they

had in the City.  He stated that Ms. Smith would talk about

One Stop, the program on which these particular employees had

worked.

Ms. Smith stated that the Electronic Pledge Review Project

was part of the Mayor's Initiative for the One Stop Shop.  She



-6-

continued that their team had been tasked to actually implement

and get this project ready, noting that they had commercial and 

residential plans reviewed that were submitted electronically,

which she noted was the goal.  She continued that this was

reviewed by nine City departments, as well as Huntsville

Utilities.

Ms. Smith stated that this initiative would result in a

cost savings to the City because it was more effective and

efficient, that it got everyone in and out, a One Stop Shop. 

She continued that they could also archive the information

electronically.

Ms. Smith stated that the team they were recognizing at

this time was the Application Development Group.  She stated

that this work had been completed in July of 2013.  She asked

all the team members to come forward to be recognized.  She

introduced the team members:  Tommy Anderson, Sandra Barnes,

Sue Collie, Margaret Huang, Andra McEwen, and Katharine

Roberts.  She stated that this was an outstanding group and

they were very proud of them.

Mayor Battle congratulated the team members.  He continued

that the One Stop Shop was something they had envisioned four

years prior and had commenced working on it.  He continued that

they had to figure out how to get everything submitted

electronically, noting that when persons came in to get a

building permit, they wanted to put everything in digitally. 

He continued that most architects worked on a digital basis, so



-7-

that they could send it in digitally.  He stated that this was 

automatically sent out to nine different departments and they

had not had to worry about someone not getting something

delivered to them.  He continued that they had not had to waste

as many trees after utilizing this program.

Mayor Battle stated that these team members had done

something that resulted in a much more efficient City and a

much more sustainable City, as well as being able to provide

faster service.  He again thanked the team members for the work

they had done on this project.

President Russell stated that Mayor Battle had asked that

a resolution be added to the agenda, being a resolution to

appoint Ms. Michelle Jordan as Director of the Planning

Department.

President Russell moved to add to the agenda a resolution

appointing Michelle Jordan as Director of the Planning

Department, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously approved.

President Russell stated that later in the meeting

Mayor Battle would explain the resolution.

President Russell stated that items 15.g and 15.j had been

deleted from the agenda.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Public Hearings to be Held.

President Russell stated that it was the time and place in

the meeting for a public hearing on a resolution authorizing



-8-

the City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of the clean-up and

removal of debris against certain property.

President Russell recognized Mr. Ken Benion, Director of

Community Development.

Mr. Benion stated that the property identified in the

resolution had previously been declared a nuisance and

authorized for clean-up and removal.  He stated that the

resolution authorized the assessment of the cost of removal of

debris for the property listed.  He continued that Attachment A

identified the owner, the date Community Development had taken

action, and the cost of the removal and clean-up of the debris

from the property.  He continued that the cost was $181.94.  He

stated that the owner had received a written request for

payment and had failed to respond, so that he was requesting

that an assessment be placed on this property to collect this

cost.

Mr. Benion stated that the owner had been notified of the

proposed action and might wish to speak at this time.

President Russell asked if there was anyone in the

audience who would like to address the Council on this

particular issue.

There was no response.

President Russell stated that the public hearing was

closed.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of the



-9-

clean-up and removal of debris against certain property, as

follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-214)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by

Councilman Showers and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that it was the time and place in

the meeting for public hearing on a resolution authorizing the

City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of the boarding and

securing against certain properties.

President Russell recognized Mr. Benion.

Mr. Benion stated that the two properties identified in

the resolution had been declared unsafe by Community

Development and the owners had been given 30 days, in

accordance with the Unsafe Building Ordinance, to obtain

permits and to commence work on correcting the noted

violations.  He stated that since the owners had failed to

respond to the notice and since the properties were standing

open and accessible, Community Development staff had boarded

and secured these properties.  He stated that Attachment A

identified the owners and the dates that Community Development

had taken action, and the cost of boarding and securing the

properties, noting that the total cost was $852.68, with an

average cost of $426.34.  He stated that the owners had

received written requests for payment and had failed to

respond, so that he was requesting that assessments be placed



-10-

on these properties in order to collect the costs.

Mr. Benion stated that the owners had been notified of

this proposed action.

President Russell asked if there was anyone in the

audience who wished to address the Council on this particular

issue.

There was no response.

President Russell stated that the public hearing was

closed.

Councilman Kling read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of the

boarding and securing against certain property, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-215)

Councilman Kling moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by

Councilman Showers and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that it was the time and place in

the meeting for a public hearing on a resolution authorizing

the City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of demolishing

property located at 3905 Gunnison Lane, NW – Accessory

Structure Only.

President Russell recognized Mr. Benion.

Mr. Benion stated that the property identified in this

resolution had previously been declared unsafe and authorized

for demolition.  He stated that the resolution authorized 

assessment of the cost of demolition and removal of debris from



-11-

the property.  He stated that Attachment A identified the

owner, the date that Community Development had taken action,

and the cost of the demolition and the removal of debris from

the property.  He continued that the cost was $3,949.55.  He

stated that the owner had failed to respond to the written

request for payment, so that he was requesting that an

assessment be placed on the property to collect the cost.

Mr. Benion stated that the owner had been notified of the

proposed action at this time and might wish to speak.

President Russell asked if there was anyone in the

audience who would like to address the Council on this

particular issue.

There was no response.

President Russell stated that the public hearing was

closed.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the City Clerk-Treasurer to assess the cost of

demolishing property located at 3905 Gunnison Lane, NW –

Accessory Structure Only, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-216)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by

Councilman Showers and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Public Hearings to be Set.

Councilman Showers read and introduced a resolution to



-12-

declare a public nuisance located at 1512 McCrary Street, NW,

Huntsville, Alabama, and to set a public hearing for objections

to be heard, at the April 10, 2014, Regular Council Meeting, as

follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-217)

Councilman Showers moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Culver

and was unanimously adopted.

Mr. Benion stated that this was being done under Alabama

Code 71-1320.  He continued that he would like to show the

Council photos of the proposed public nuisance, noting that it

was a fire-damaged property and that the owner had been given

time on this to clear the debris from the property, which time

should have expired approximately February 14.  He stated that

the resolution actually declared this property a public

nuisance and they would come back at the next meeting, but that

under Alabama law, it was to be discussed at this time, under

Alabama 71-1320.  He stated that he just wanted to get this on

the record.  

President Russell asked Mr. Benion if he would like for

the Council to discuss the matter at this time.

Mr. Benion stated that it should be discussed at the next

meeting of the Council, that he had just needed to set out the

process.

Councilman Kling asked if there was anything that could be

done about this situation so that the residents in the area did



-13-

not have to put up with the condition of this property for the

upcoming two weeks or more.

Mr. Benion replied in the negative, stating that under the

law, persons had to be given the opportunity to abate the

nuisance.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was a presentation by the Green Building Council.

Mr. John Allen appeared before the Council, stating that

he was the Chairman of the Green Building Council, for the

prior four years, at the Huntsville-Madison County Builders

Association.  He stated that he had a presentation of a

resolution from the Legislature in Montgomery and that he

wanted to give the Council a synopsis of what the resolution

was about before he read it.

Mr. Allen stated that, as persons might be aware, the

Energy Code had been under great discussion in the prior

18 months, within the City of Huntsville, Madison County, and

the City of Madison.  He stated that if one went back to 2009,

when Alabama had taken the stimulus funds, a portion of these

funds were really slated for energy efficiency, and also the

creation of an adopted Energy Code for the State of Alabama

that would apply to new residential construction.

Mr. Allen stated that over the course of 2010 and 2011,

the State had a Board, the Alabama Energy and Residential Codes

Board, that had met and said that the builders were going to

follow the 2009 Energy Code.  He stated that it was a State



-14-

mandated law that they, as new construction residential

builders, had to follow.

Mr. Allen stated that he would give a brief synopsis of

the Energy Code.  He stated that October 2, 2012, was the date 

the Energy Code was mandated.  He continued that when October

1, 2012, had come around, the different municipalities in

Alabama were struggling with how to implement this and how to

follow the Energy Code.  He stated that it was a mandated law

but it was an unfunded mandate and everyone was trying to

determine how they could implement this in their process.  He

stated that at that time Huntsville Utilities, the City of

Huntsville, the City of Madison, and the County had all come

together with the Huntsville-Madison County Builders

Association to determine how they could best implement this

together.  He stated that at this time all these municipalities

were on the same page with this.  He continued that, however,

to say that all their inspection departments were seeing

something the same way would be a big deal.

Mr. Allen thanked Mr. Randy Cunningham for his leadership

in this, as well as Huntsville Utilities for their leadership.

Mr. Allen stated that this had been announced at a press

conference at Home Builders on September 27 and they had gone

live with the program on January 1, 2014.  He stated that this

was the only county in the state of Alabama that was

implementing the Energy Code like Huntsville was, noting that

it was this kind of collaboration and cooperation that made the



-15-

community a success.  He thanked the Council and the

administration for their leadership.

Mr. Allen read the subject resolution to the Council as

follows:  The Legislature of the State of Alabama has mandated

a statewide energy conservation plan, and the Madison County

Legislative Delegation has observed an unprecedented spirit of

cooperation between the three jurisdictions which inspect in

Madison County.  Madison County is the only county in the great

state of Alabama which is enforcing the Alabama Energy Code

uniformly between the aforementioned governmental entities, and

this rare and highly commendable cooperation is focused totally

upon the betterment of the citizens of Alabama, whereas all new

residential homes will be compliant with the Alabama Energy

Code, thereby reducing the consumption of valuable natural

resources in Alabama and creating more disposable income for

the purchase of durable goods, thereby helping the local retail

economy to prosper; and whereas the Huntsville-Madison County

Builders Association, along with its partners at Huntsville

Utilities, was the driving force behind the development and

implementation of this program after almost 16 months of

development and testing; and the implementation process of the

Alabama Energy Code, developed by the Huntsville-Madison County

Builders Association, Huntsville Utilities, Mayor Tommy Battle,

Madison County Commission Chairman Dale Strong, and Mayor Troy

Trulock, should be considered as a statewide model of

cooperation and collaboration.  Now, therefore, be it resolved



-16-

by the House of Representatives that our sincere appreciation

is offered to the Huntsville-Madison County Builders

Association, Huntsville Utilities, the City of Huntsville, the

City of Madison, and the Madison County Commission for its

tireless efforts on behalf of the citizens of Madison County

and the great State of Alabama.

Mr. Allen again thanked the Administration and the Council

for its leadership, stating that the members of the

Huntsville-Madison County Builders Association certainly

appreciated this.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Communications from the Public.

Ms. Jackie Reed, Jack Coleman Drive, appeared before the

Council, stating that she wanted to thank the Council for

allowing prayers in the Council Chambers, noting that she

really appreciated it.

Ms. Reed thanked President Russell for his invitation to

her to attend the Council breakfast meeting with the Madison

City Council, expressing regret that she had not been able to

attend.

Ms. Reed stated that she wanted Huntsville Utilities

looked into, that she had a real problem with what was going

on.  She stated that her utility bill had been $89 the prior

month but that the current month it was $189.  She stated that

she had called to find out why her bill was going up and they

had advised her that they had misread her meter the prior month



-17-

and that they had added an amount to the current month.  She

stated that she asked them if they could come back out and

again read her meter, noting that when she had tried to read

it, she could not even see through the glass to read it, with a

magnifying glass and glasses.  She continued that she had been

advised by the Utilities that it would cost her $50 for them to

come back and read it.  She questioned why this would be when

they had misread it in the first place.  She stated that the

woman had replied that they had added the prior month's bill to

the current month's bill.  She stated that she had been advised

that they made mistakes, and she stated that they were making

many mistakes.

Ms. Reed stated that she would like for the Council to

look into the utility bills and find out how these bills were

being done, noting that they were too high.  She stated that if

the Council needed her to look into it, if they would give her

the authority, she would certainly do so.  She continued that

someone had to look into this.

Ms. Reed stated that it appeared they were finally doing

Old Madison Pike and stated that the bridge in the location

needed a name and that she thought "Jackie Reed" on the

Huntsville side would be good and "Johnny Harris" on the other

side would be good, noting that Mr. Harris was the Director of

the State Highway Department.

President Russell stated to Ms. Reed that a representative

from Huntsville Utilities was present and that she could direct



-18-

any questions about her bill to him, that he was certain he

would be glad to help her.  He stated that if she continued to

have questions, to consult with him after the meeting.

Ms. Tammy Jordan, 4900 Cotton Row, appeared before the

Council to express appreciation from her community.  She stated

that she worked for Second Mile Development and that she was

the Community Director for Terry Heights-Hillandale, noting

that she had been in that area for more than 10 years.  She

stated that they just wanted to thank their community partners: 

the City of Huntsville, Huntsville City Schools, Community

Development, the Food Bank of North Alabama, Family Services,

Second Mile Development, and the Huntsville Housing Authority. 

She stated that they were also very appreciative of the

Sanitation Department, Mr. Terry Hatfield.

Ms. Jordan stated that they had community meetings once a

quarter.  She thanked the Family Services Center and Community

Development for the beautiful homes they had in Terry Heights,

noting that there were a total of 22 homes that had just been

rehabbed.  She continued that they had community newsletters

once a quarter and that they had Welcome Wagon, as well.

Ms. Jordan stated that the most important thing, other

than the homes, was that they now had a farmer's market.  She

stated that they had had this in the prior year and they were

very thankful for it.  She stated that it had been open the

prior year from June 5 to September 25, and that it was every

Wednesday from 3 to 7 p.m. 



-19-

Ms. Jordan stated that they had had a community health

fair, and she thanked Mayor Battle and Mr. Kenny Anderson for

attending this event and she also thanked them for their

support, as well as thanking Huntsville Hospital.  She stated

that at A Taste of Health, they also had, as part of the

Huntsville Healthy Initiative program, the North Alabama

Diabetic Association, the Madison County Health Department,

WIC, Lowe’s, and Chef Will.  

Ms. Jordan reiterated that she would like to thank

everyone for all their support.

Mr. Jerry Cox, 4029 Telstar Circle, appeared before the

Council, stating that, as a veteran of the United States Army,

he was both saddened and happy to report that during the prior

four weeks, there had been only one soldier killed in

Afghanistan.  He continued that this was a 20-year-old marine

from Minnesota.  He stated that, hopefully, before too many

more weeks, he would not have to make such reports at the

Council meetings, that there would not be soldiers still dying

in Afghanistan.

Mr. Cox stated that he saw that the Council had deleted

item 15.g from the agenda and stated that he was wondering if

item 15.g also included the City purchasing the residentially

zoned property at McDonnell School.  He stated that since the

TV station had reported that this item was going to be

considered by the Council at this meeting and it was on the

agenda, perhaps the public would like to know why it had been



-20-

deleted from the agenda. 

Mr. Cox stated that he had a neighbor in a single-family

residence that had three large green garbage cans and that on

this date they had been out on the side of the road, noting

that this was a pick-up day for the area.  He stated that in

addition to having the three cans, the lids were open on all

three of them, and the garbage was two to three feet high in

each of the cans, and that on the side of the road were garbage

bags full of garbage, and boxes.  He reiterated that this was a

single-family residence and stated that this happened every

week.  He stated that, in addition, for the last two days, from

his residence he could view garbage on this person's carport.

Mr. Cox stated that he was wondering if there were any

Code violations involved with this.

Mr. Cox stated that he would yield the remainder of his

time to get answers to the two questions he had posed.

President Russell stated that item 15.g had been deleted

from the agenda because both parties had not agreed to a

contract.

President Russell stated that it appeared to him that

there were Code violations concerning the three garbage cans

and stated that if Mr. Cox would provide an address on this, he

would have someone check into it.  He asked Mr. Hamilton to

discuss this matter with Mr. Cox.

Mr. Cox asked if the City purchasing the McDonnell

property was a part of item 15.g on the agenda.



-21-

President Russell replied in the negative.

Mr. Cox asked when that sale was expected to happen.

President Russell stated that if the land sold, that would

be done, that it would be a contract that would be on the

agenda.

Mr. Cox stated that he hoped the public would be made

aware of that in sufficient time to have input into this.

President Russell stated that this would be done.

Pastor T.C. Johnson, 1800 Sparkman Drive, appeared before

the Council, stating, concerning Huntsville Utilities, that

about a year prior the subject had come up about contracting

out the meter reading and the citizens had been told there

would be substantial savings as a result of this.  He asked

when citizens could expect to hear about this savings and be

informed as to how much had been saved by doing this.

Pastor Johnson stated that since the meter reading had

changed, it was strange that under the contractors, there were

several more African Americans who were able to read meters in

Huntsville at this time.  He stated that that was certainly a

good thing to happen, that he just did not understand why it

had not happened previously.

Pastor Johnson stated that the reason he had asked the

question about cost savings was because the prior meter readers

had been given other jobs, so that he did not see how this

would result in a savings.  He reiterated that he wanted to

know if there would be public information provided that the



-22-

City had saved "X" amount of dollars by contracting out the

meter reading.

Pastor Johnson stated he had been told several times that

there were going to be fewer African Americans in the new class

of police officers.  He continued that that worried him because

they had said they had to make efforts to change these

dynamics.  He continued that he believed this was part of the

citation disparity they had within the city.  He stated that

recently he had run into two young men who had passed all the

tests but were never called.  He stated that one of these young

men was trying to make Huntsville his home, and that, also, a

third young man wanted to do the same and had called three

times and had never had any response.

Pastor Johnson stated that he believed this was an ongoing

issue and the reason for the disparity he had mentioned.  He

stated that he would like for the Council to take this into

consideration, based on the disparity that he saw in the

citation issue, since he could not get any factual information

that would tell him why, in six months, the information he had

showed that three ZIP codes had received more citations than

the ten ZIP codes in the entire city.  He stated that if one

did the ratio, it was, like, 30,000 to 150,000, that African

Americans got more citations in these ZIP codes.  He stated

that this should be something that should concern the City

leaders.

Pastor Johnson stated that he was not talking about the



-23-

validity of the citations, that that was not the issue, but

that he was stating he felt the City ought to be concerned

about this and look into it.  He stated that if there was

nothing there, fine, to just advise him what they had done to

show there was nothing there.

Pastor Johnson reiterated that he would like the figure on

what had been saved by contracting out the meter reading and

asked at what time this information would be provided.

President Russell stated they would have to get that

information from Huntsville Utilities and that he would do so. 

He stated that the Utilities furnished a financial report, and

it was public knowledge.  He continued that he would contact

the Utilities Department and see if he could get

Pastor Johnson's specific question answered.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Board Appointment Nominations.

Councilman Kling nominated Alan Bibb for reappointment to

the Madison County Communications District Board (Enhanced 911

Board), for a term to expire April 30, 2017.  

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Approval of Expenditures.

Councilman Kling read and introduced a resolution

authorizing expenditures for payment, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-218)

Councilman Kling moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Culver



-24-

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Communications from the Mayor.

President Russell recognized Mayor Battle.

Mayor Battle announced the following appointment: 

Kimberly Ford as a supernumerary member of the Board of Zoning

Adjustments, for a three-year term, effective March 27, 2014,

and to expire on March 9, 2017.

Mayor Battle asked the Council to approve the appointment

of Michelle Jordan as Planning Director, Grade 22.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

appointing Michelle G. Jordan as Planning Director, Grade 22,

as follows: 

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-219)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by

Councilman Showers and was unanimously adopted.

Mayor Battle welcomed the City department heads and their

designees to the meeting, noting that this was spring break

week and many department heads were out of town.  He thanked

everyone for coming to the meeting.

Mayor Battle stated that the past week they had launched

Huntsville Connect, noting this was a way that persons could go

on their I-phone, cell phone, or any digital media and connect

through the website to Huntsville Connect and could report

lights out, potholes, sidewalks, and take a picture of such and



-25-

submit it to the City.  He stated this was more of a seamless

way the City could take suggestions for improvements and move

them to the correct department.  He continued that the correct

department, after taking care of the item, would send a notice

back to the person, so that they would know their problem had

been closed out.

Mayor Battle stated that this was one of the ways the City

was going to have some accountability, to know that they would

actually be able to answer these calls, and that they would

know what was open each week and be able to work on it.  He

thanked all the departments who were assisting with this.  He

continued that there were 50-some-odd customer care

representatives in the City who were all working on this,

trying to make sure that it was done right as it was commenced.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Communications from Council Members.

Councilman Culver announced that he would be holding a

town hall meeting at the Wall Triana Church at Capshaw and

Wall Triana Highway, on April 21, commencing at 6:30 p.m.  He

stated that they would be discussing matters indigenous to the

communities in that area, but that any meeting he held was

always open to the public, so that other persons were certainly

welcome to attend.

Councilman Culver asked Mr. Lou Wynn to stand so that he

could introduce him.  He stated that Mr. Wynn was from

Gloversville, New York, and he was interested in moving back to



-26-

Huntsville.  He stated that he had been the Executive Director

of the New York State Office of Children and Family Services

and that he had a laundry list of things he had done.  He

stated that he certainly hoped Mr. Wynn would make Huntsville

his home, noting that they could certainly use his expertise in

the city if he was still interested in working.

Councilman Culver stated that Mr. Wynn had done a lot of

things with youth, as the Executive Director, and had a lot of

successes which he had been reading about.  He welcomed

Mr. Wynn to the city.

Councilman Culver stated that he would like to introduce

one of his former students from Alabama A&M, Mr. McFarland.  He

asked if the group was present at the meeting working on a

school assignment.

Mr. Randall McFarland, III, appeared before the Council,

stating that he was a student in Social Work, the Master's

program.  He stated that his group was working on an assignment

and was also attending the Council meeting for the experience,

noting that they would have a lot to talk about in class.

Councilman Culver stated to Pastor Johnson that his

concern was certainly his own concern also.  He stated that he

was aware that the Chief of Police was working diligently to

try to have a police department that would be more reflective

of the city of Huntsville.  He continued that Huntsville was

33 percent African American and they should have that kind of

representation within every division of City government, that



-27-

it shouldn't just be Public Works and Sanitation.  He stated

that if Huntsville was 30 or 40 percent Martian, the green

people, that if they were taxpaying citizens in Huntsville,

they should have the same equal representation.  He stated that

this was not about race.

Councilman Culver stated that he shared Pastor Johnson's

view that a lot of concerns they had could be resolved if they

had a department that was a little more reflective of the

community it served, noting that diversity was always good.  He

continued that one should look at the Supreme Court, some of

the most intelligent, legal, brilliant minds in the world, and

that they did not always agree.  He stated that that was the

reason diversity was good, because it gave persons a different

perspective.  He stated that he wanted to say to all the

department heads in the City that this should be the goal of

every department within City government.  He continued that he

was not just looking at African American, that he was looking

at women, Hispanics, Pacific Islanders, and Asians.  He stated

that there were quite a few persons of Asian descent in the

city.  He stated that he had tried to get a gentleman on with

the police department, but that the gentleman, although

imminently qualified, was not interested at this time.

Councilman Culver reiterated that diversity was always

good, noting that the City had to get this mindset.  He stated

that when he talked about diversity, it was not, by any means,

to do something that was discriminatory against other people, 



-28-

that it was just that it should be a goal.  He continued that

he had gotten criticized for saying this and stated that he was

not talking about going back with affirmative action, saying

that for every Caucasian American one hired, one had to hire

two African Americans.  He stated that this was not what he was

saying, that he was saying that it should be their goal as one

city, one Huntsville, to have a city that was more reflective

of the community.

Councilman Culver stated that his challenge to all the

department heads was to be cognizant of this as they moved

forward.  He stated, concerning law enforcement, that he had

served in this capacity and that he was pro-police and would

always be pro-police.

Councilman Culver stated that it was difficult to recruit

minorities and that what they had to do was to go to certain

areas and emphasize recruiting.  He continued that this would

be places such as Alabama A&M University, Oakwood University,

Stillman College, and other predominantly African American

colleges and universities, including Alabama State University. 

He stated that he was offering his help in this regard, not in

micromanaging, but if there would be something he could do to

help in this matter, he would certainly do so.  He stated that

he was aware that this would be difficult because,

historically, African Americans had not always been interested

in careers in law enforcement.  He stated that there was a

challenge with this, but he knew they could do it.



-29-

Councilman Culver stated that if they could put man on the

moon, there was nothing they should not be able to do in

Huntsville, Alabama.

Councilman Kling stated that earlier in the day, he had

been the guest speaker at the University Baptist Church Seniors

group, noting that this was a great event.  He stated that he

had gotten some good ideas from persons, some very positive

suggestions, in terms of things they needed to look at in City

government.  He continued that he would be following up on

this.

Councilman Kling stated that his last town meeting had

been held on Tuesday, March 18.  He stated that he certainly

appreciated the persons who had attended this event, noting

that they had good discussion, good input, that it had been a

good perspective on things to work on.

Councilman Kling stated that on the prior Saturday he had

been able to participate with the Fraternal Order of Eagles,

noting that they had held an auction to benefit Cystic

Fibrosis.  He stated that there had been a good turnout for

this, and they had raised a lot of money.  He stated that one

of the things that was auctioned off, for an undisclosed amount

of money, was a certificate that would designate a person as an

honorary City Council member.  

Councilman Kling stated that he certainly appreciated the

good work this organization was doing.  He continued that the

organization contributed in excess of $50,000 per year to



-30-

various charities in the Huntsville-Madison County area.

Councilman Kling stated that on the prior Monday he had

been at a meeting for the reactivated, revitalized McThornmor

Acres Community Watch Group.  He stated that the City

benefitted because of the tens of thousands of hours that were

volunteered by citizens in the community for the Community

Watch chapters throughout the city.  He stated that they worked

very well with the Police Department and that this helped a

great deal with the quality of life and safety in the

neighborhoods.  He stated that he certainly appreciated all the

great work that was done by the Community Watch chapters.  He

continued that they would be having a citywide meeting in the

near future.  He stated that the City donated approximately

$23,000 a year to this organization and got tens of thousands

of hours in return to combat crime, working with the Police

Department.

Councilman Kling stated that one issue there was a lot of

concern over in West Huntsville was that regardless of

whichever redistricting plan would be passed for the school

system, whether it would be the School System plan or the

Justice Department plan, numerous schools in West Huntsville

would be closed.  He continued that there was great concern

about the impact of this on the neighborhoods and how things

were going to be in the aftermath of this.  He stated that he

believed everyone was aware that an empty school building was

not a good thing for a neighborhood, that it attracted crime,



-31-

that persons wanted to break windows, that homeless persons

wanted to break in and find a place to camp out, et cetera.

Councilman Kling stated that he had contacted

Dr. Wardynski concerning this and that he was very appreciative

that he had agreed to come out to a Holiday Homes Neighborhood

Association meeting in early May to talk about the plans they

had for dealing with the school buildings.  He stated that he

was sure this would be a very good, productive discussion, and

that he believed this would be good for the residents of

Holiday Homes, as well as other neighborhood associations in

the area.  He stated that persons would be able to get

information and to ask questions concerning this matter.

Councilman Kling stated to Ms. Reed that he hoped they had

been able to solve her problem, and if not, to contact him and

he would see what he could do.

Councilman Showers stated that he would like to

acknowledge the Johnson High School alumni, noting that some of

the members were present at the meeting and he wanted them to

stand and be recognized.  He stated that he had thought they

had signed in to speak, but, obviously, they were not on the

list.  He thanked them for their efforts and their concern,

noting that they had attended several meetings, and they were

still concerned about the wishes of the citizens who resided in

North Huntsville relating to decisions that had been made in

the past.

Councilman Showers stated that he would like to



-32-

acknowledge a gentleman by the name of Richard Kier, a

long-time friend of his, a fraternity brother.  He stated that

Mr. Kier had passed away recently and that he wanted to ask for

everyone's prayers for his wife and children.  He stated that

the family visitation would be on the following day at Royal

Funeral Home, and the funeral services would be held on

Saturday at Union Hill Primitive Baptist Church.  

Councilman Showers stated that he had been delighted on

the current morning to have a breakfast meeting with

Mayor Battle, President Russell, Councilman Olshefski, and

members of the Madison City Council and talk about mutual

opportunities for moving the cities and the county forward.

    Councilman Showers stated the Southern Regional National

Primitive Baptist Convention was being held in the city on the

upcoming week-end and that on March 29 he would welcome them on

behalf of the citizens of Huntsville, the Mayor, and the

Council.

Councilman Showers stated that Ringling Bros & Barnum &

Bailey Circus would be in town on April 2 through April 6 and

urged persons to support this opportunity for the children.

Councilman Showers stated that the 16th Annual Junior

Cotillion Ball would be held on Saturday, April 5, at the Von

Braun Center, noting that he would be representing the City at

this particular function.

Councilman Showers stated that there would be a

ribbon-cutting on Wednesday, April 9, at 9:30, at the Academy



-33-

for Science & Foreign Language.  He stated that he was invited

to this, along with other Council members and Mayor Battle, he

believed.

Councilman Olshefski stated that he would like to thank

Mr. Cox for providing the update concerning the soldier that

had lost his life in Afghanistan.

Councilman Olshefski stated that he believed the meeting

earlier in the day with members of the Madison City Council had

been a good meeting.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was New Business Items for Introduction.

President Russell read and introduced Ordinance

No. 14-220, annexing land lying on the east side of

US Highway 431 South and on the north side of Caldwell Lane.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was New Business Items for Consideration or Action.  He stated

that items 15.g and 15.j had been deleted from the agenda.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 2 (Final) to

the agreement between the City of Huntsville and McDonald

Brothers Construction, Inc., for Cove Park Soccer Fields

located at 864 Old Highway 431, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-221)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.



-34-

President Russell read and introduced an ordinance

declaring certain IT equipment as obsolete and allowing it to

be salvaged and sold by MARS, LLC, as follows:

(ORDINANCE NO. 14-222)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

ordinance, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the acceptance of donations, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-223)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell read and introduced an ordinance to

amend Budget Ordinance No. 13-630 by changing appropriated

funding for various departments and funds, as follows:

(ORDINANCE NO. 14-224)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

ordinance, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement with the low

bidder meeting specifications as outlined in the attached

Summary of Bids for Acceptance, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-225)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing



-35-

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Lease Agreement between

the City of Huntsville and The Alabama Constitution Village

Foundation, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-226)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the Mayor to execute a Special Employee Agreement

between the City of Huntsville and James M. Bush, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-227)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling

and was unanimously adopted.

Councilman Showers read and introduced a resolution

authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement between the

City of Huntsville and Tolar Construction LLC for construction

services of the new Fire Station #19 located at 2455 Old Big

Cove Road, as follows:

(RESOLUTION NO. 14-228)

Councilman Showers moved for approval of the foregoing

resolution, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Kling.

President Russell asked Mr. Chris O'Neil, Manager of



-36-

General Services, to describe the fire station building and

advise as to the cost.

Mr. O'Neil stated that this was a two-bay fire station,

approximately 7,000 square feet, and that it contained

captain's quarters, sleeping quarters for the fire fighters, a

kitchen, a turn-out gear room, a weight room, and a lounge.  He

stated that the Tolar contract amount was $1,772,395.

President Russell asked if Tolar was a company with which

the City normally did business.

Mr. O'Neil stated that Tolar had bid on several City

projects, but this was the first time they had won.  He stated

that the company was based in Scottsboro, Alabama.  He stated

that they had also bid on Fire Station No. 6.

President Russell asked, since this was the first time

this company would be working for the City, if they would be

watched diligently, to make sure they did a good job.

Mr. O'Neil replied in the affirmative.  He continued that

they would definitely stay on top of the project with them,

that they would go through the entire process and make sure

everything was done correctly.

President Russell called for the vote on the above

resolution, and it was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Legal Department Items/Transactions.

President Russell read and introduced an ordinance

authorizing the vacation of a 5-foot Utility and Drainage



-37-

Easement, Lots 12 and 13, Buck Island Commercial Park, Plat

Book 42, Page 63 (Island Circle: Buck Island Investment Group,

LLC), as follows:

(ORDINANCE NO. 14-229)

President Russell moved for approval of the foregoing

ordinance, which motion was duly seconded by Councilman Showers

and was unanimously adopted.

President Russell stated that the next item on the agenda

was Non-Roster Communications from the Public.

Ms. Jackie Reed again appeared before the Council, stating

that she again wished to speak concerning the Utilities

Department.  She stated that she had been informed outside the

meeting that Utilities had contracted out the meter readings. 

She continued that these persons had Tennessee license plates

on their trucks and cars.  She stated that she did not know who

was supposed to be watching these persons.  

Ms. Reed stated that a few months prior, her sewer bill

had been $43 and that when she had called about that, they had

come back out, and they had given her a $30 credit.  She stated

that she had advised them that she did not wash there, that she

did not cook there, and that half the time she was not even

there, and that she had questioned how her sewer bill could be

$43.  She reiterated that they had taken some off of this bill. 

Ms. Reed continued that with these mistakes at her house,

she questioned what was going on around the entire city.  She

stated that this entire thing needed to be looked into.  She



-38-

continued that many persons had been asking her if she was

aware of what was going on at Huntsville Utilities and that she

had advised them that she did not know.  She continued that she

had now turned this over to the Council to look into every bit

of what was going on.  She stated that if the persons who were

supposed to read the meters could not do so, they needed to

fire some persons and get some persons out there that could

read them.  She stated that she could not even see through hers

to read it.  She continued that they wanted $50 to come back

out and read the meter after they had misread it.  She stated

that that was just not right.  She stated that there were good

people in the city and that the Council needed to get their

hands on the utility bills.  She stated that she was aware that

it had been cold, but noted that it had not been that cold.

Mr. Walt Hennessy, 10002 Hogan Drive, appeared before the

Council, stating that he was speaking at this time on behalf of

Huntsville South, a civic organization in South Huntsville.  He

stated that on the first Wednesday of every month was their

program meeting and that at the upcoming meeting they would be

having a speaker from the EMA to advise them as to how to be

weather aware, with the upcoming tornado season, et cetera.  He

stated that they would certainly welcome any member of the

public who would like to attend this event, at 6 p.m. at the

Bailey Cove Library.  He continued that, also, persons would be

hearing about Huntsville South sponsoring some fundraisers:  a

pancake breakfast, a golf tournament, and a rummage sale.



-39-

Mr. Hennessy expressed appreciation to the Council for

allowing the public to speak.

Councilman Showers stated that he had a question to ask of

Mr. Hamilton.  He stated that he had received several calls

from citizens concerning the fact that the Child Development

Center that was located adjacent to the Showers Center was not

being used, that it was closed.  He asked if Mr. Hamilton would

follow up on this, as to why it was not being used at this

time.

Mr. Hamilton stated that he could explain this.  He stated

that some rather significant maintenance issues with the

facility had been discovered that made it not appropriate to

have the kids in there.  He stated that General Services had

gone in to remediate the issue, and that it was now ready to be

renovated and put back in use.  He stated that they had been

working on this for a few months, that the project was funded,

and that should get started on it pretty quickly.  He stated

that the goal was to have it back open for the next school

year, so that by late summer they should have the project done

and have the location open again in August.

Councilman Culver stated that he would like to introduce

Mr. Hennessy to Pastor T.C. Johnson, the President of the North

Huntsville Civic Association.  He stated that he wanted them to

meet because they had a lot of commonalities, noting that there

were areas in South Huntsville they had to work on and areas in

North Huntsville they had to work on.  He stated that they



-40-

could exchange information and stated that he was certainly

available to assist with whatever he could.

President Russell asked if there was anyone else in the

audience who would like to address the Council.

There was no response.

Upon motion, duly seconded, it was voted to adjourn.

_______________________________
PRESIDENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:

_________________________
CITY CLERK-TREASURER


